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CHAIR MATEO: Meeting with the Housing and Human Services Committee for July 25,2005 is now called
to order. For the record, members present with us this evening are the Vice-Chair of the Committee,
Mr. Joe Pontanilla, Member Charmaine Tavares and Member Jo Anne Johnson. Member Riki Hokama
is excused this evening. Also with us is a non-committee member, Mr. Dain Kane. Other individuals
present at this committee, I would like to introduce our Committee Analyst, Mr. Lance Taguchi, and our
Committee Secretary, Yvette Bantilan. Other individuals present with us this evening, we have from the
Housing and Human Concerns Department, the Director Alice Lee; from the Parks Department,
Mr. John Buck, Deputy Director; as well as Patrick Matsui, the Parks' Chief of Planning. We also have
Michael Miyamoto, from the Public Works and Environmental Management; Mr. Mike Foley, the
Director of Planning; and the Acting Assistant Chief for the Department of Police, Glenn Miyahira; and
also with us this evening is our Mayor, Mayor Alan Arakawa.
ALL: ... (applause) ...
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CHAIR MATEO: Before going on, the Chair would like to state for the record that the intent of tonight's
meeting is to receive public testimony regarding the Hale Mua affordable housing project as the
Housing and Human Services Committee now has 45 days to review, to consider, and to decide on the
approval or the denial of this application that's before us. August 24, 2005 is our deadline.

HHS-1(2)

HRS CHAPTER 201G AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT, WAIEHU) (CC. No. 05-30)

(HALE

MUA

CHAIR MATEO: The Hale Mua affordable housing subdivision is being processed in accordance to
Section 20lG-118 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes. Section 201G-118 promotes the delivery of
affordable housing by allowing the exemption of the endorsed projects from various statutes,
ordinances, Charter provisions, and rules of government agencies relating to planning, zoning,
construction standards for subdivision developments, and improvements of lands and the construction of
units. Please be aware that with the 201 G project, our role is to either approve or deny the project. The
project developer (Hale Mua, LLC) is requesting exemptions from the community plan, the
comprehensive zoning ordinance, the filing of Project District Phase II and Phase III applications to
permit the realignment of Imi Kala Street; the standards for curbs, gutters, and sidewalks; wastewater
assessments and wastewater system connection fees; permit and inspection fees for driveways, grubbing
and grading; permit fees for fire, electrical, plumbing, and building demolition; traffic impact fees; and
park and playground dedications. The project consists of 466-lot single family subdivision, including
238 affordable house-lot packages for families whose incomes are between 70 percent and 100 percent
of Maui County's median family income. Shortly, the developer will be providing us with a
10-15 minute overview of Hale Mua affordable housing subdivision proj ect. When that is completed,
the Chair will ask the County Department representatives to provide comment before opening the floor
to public testimony. Committee members will be allowed to ask questions of the testifiers, the
developer, and the Department representatives as well. We need to make it real clear that this evening,
no decision on the approval or denial of this project will be addressed. We are here to listen to the
residents and to receive testimony. With that being said, I would like to ask the representative of the
developer (Mr. Mike Munekiyo) to come on up and provide the presentation to us. And perhaps before
you start, I also would like to introduce the developer of the project (Mr. Sterling Kim) who flew in from
the mainland to make this meeting this evening. Mr. Kim.
ALL: '" (applause) ...
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
MR. MUNEKIYO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee (Council members) and
members of the public. My name is Mike Munekiyo. I am the planning consultant on behalf of Hale
Mua Properties. I would like to make a very brief project overview presentation for you this evening as
well as Committee members. As Chair Mateo has mentioned, Hale Mua Properties, LLC is the
applicant for a Section 201G project subdivision and the County of Maui has determined that this project
qualifies as a Section 201G application by virtue of meeting two criteria. One that 51 percent, a
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minimum of 51 percent of the units will be sold to those families earning not more than 120 percent of
the median County family income. So with that approval, this project has proceeded on the 201G track.
For those of you who may not be familiar with the Section 201G process, as the Chair has mentioned, it
does allow for certain exemptions from land use, planning, zoning, and construction standards.
Essentially, with the intent of allowing for the more timely and more cost-efficient development and
delivery of affordable homes. Now this project, although at the stage of Council approval for
Section 201G ... uh ... the Section 201G resolution, has really been in the planning process for well
over a year. To begin with, this process started with the preparation of an environmental assessment.
The draft environmental assessment was prepared. That draft environmental assessment was accepted
by the State Land Use Commission; in this case, the State's approving authority. The final
environmental assessment was also approved by the State Land Use Commission. This process has
brought us to the point where we are now having the opportunity to bring the project before the Council.
Just so that everyone knows, the environmental assessment process really required the applicant to work
with agencies, members of the Administration, and members of the Council to get through as many of
the issues as were pertinent through that process. I think at that point, at this point, we feel quite
comfortable that we've been able to address the key issues and are ready to proceed with the actual
project development upon approval of the 201G process.
Just as background, I think all of you have received a project handout which includes a very brief
summary of the project. It also has a project location map as well as a preliminary subdivision layout,
so you can refer to those as I speak because I think this figure up here is probably not very functional at
this point. I will say that the project site is located in the Waiehu area, mauka of Kahekili Highway, just
to the south of Ma1aihi Road. I think many of you are familiar with that area if you were to look on the
project location map. The project site encompasses approximately 238 acres. This site historically has
been used for sugarcane, cultivation, and more recently macadamia nut orchard cultivation. Since the
termination of macadamia nut cultivation by Wailuku Agribusiness, it has laid fallow. So right now, it's
basically undeveloped vacant land with some remnants of MacNut trees on 'em. The subdivision
proposes 466 lots, of which 238 would be affordably priced. These lots would be approximately a
minimum of 5,000 square feet in size and again, I'll speak to some of the house design parameters in a
few minutes; but again, 238. There are also going to be 20910ts only sold. These 209 lots are gonna be
a minimum of 10,000 square feet. Finally, we have a large-lot component (19 large lots) which range in
size from 2 acres to 25 acres. So just to summarize the breakdown again: 238 affordable house-lot
packages on approximately 5,000 square feet lots; 209 market price lots only for sale on 10,000 square
feet lots; and 19 large lots (lots only) for sale on parcels ranging in size from 2-25 acres. The way the
... if you were to look on the map, the way these parcels are configured spatially, you've got the
affordable lots closer to Kahekili Highway; and then mauka of that, you've got the 10,000 square foot
lots; and finally, a parameter of the larger lots (the 2-25 acres large lots). The way this concept was
... uh ... evolved is basically to have the smaller ... uh ... higher density affordable lots in close to
the highway and as you expand out from the core, density reduces. It's basically providing for a fairly
smooth transition to the surrounding Agricultural lands and so that's basically the notion in terms of a
subdivision layout. You will note, or if you can't really identify, there are two crosshatch parcels within
the site plan (the subdivision plan) and these are excluded parcels. In other words, these are owned by
other parties and so not part of the application.
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The subdivision improvements itself would include the construction and installation of subdivision
roads--of course, water, sewer, utilities, electrical, telephone utilities. These will all be built to County
standards. There is a section of roadway improvement along Kahekili Highway for which we are
seeking exemptions and these would be at the outer parameters of the project subdivision. Again, along
Kahekili Highway, there are two access points--I might add--to the subdivision and between the two
access points from Kahekili Highway, these ... uh ... the section of roadway will be built to County
standards. But outside of those access points to the south and to the north, we are asking that we be
allowed to precede with project development without County standard ... uh . " meeting County
standards.
Other improvements, we would need to provide a new wastewater pump station. I think that's included
or indicated on the map. From this pump station will be extended a new sewer force main and that force
main will extend along Kahekili Highway and down along the new Imi Kala Street extension--which I'll
get to in a minute as well--and finally hooking up to an existing manhole near the Millyard subdivision.
They'll be other offsite infrastructure improvements required as well (new storage for water and fire
protection) and ... uh ... I think that storage requirement we're looking at probably another
500,000 gallons of storage to meet the Department of Water Supply's standard.
At this point, I would like to just ask Shay to just hold up the Imi Kala Street extension map. You do
have on your Figure 1 in front of you, a map which shows the project site. There's a little dash line if
you look on the Figure 1. That little dash line off to the side, that is the Imi Kala Street extension. Let
me just sit down for a minute so I don't get in the way ofthe--here's the project subdivision site again.
This is Kahekili Highway. I know it's difficult to see but I'll go ... uh ... and try to describe it a little
better in a minute. Imi Kala Street along here. Okay, thank you, Shay. But you can see just from a
relative location standpoint on your Figure 1 that Imi Kala Street is outside of the limits of the project
itself. It's ... uh ... if you are familiar with Puuohala Road, it's about 1,400 feet to the north of
Puuohala Road and that's where the intersection with Kahekili is located. It will go through what is now
known as the Piihana Project District and connect up to the Imi Kala Street, where the Wailuku Post
Office is. You may be aware that the Wailuku Post Office ... uh ... Imi Kala Street fronting Wailuku
Post Office dead-ends at lao Stream and so what needs to be done is a new bridge would need to be
constructed crossing over lao Stream, thus making the connection all the way up to Kahekili Highway.
We believe this will really help to reduce some of the traffic congestion that occurs now as well as the
trips generated by the new subdivision, taking a lot of pressure off of Market Street, which is somewhat
congested today.
Now getting back to the affordable homes, I think model ... uh ... pictures of the models and floor
plans were also distributed; but if you don't have' em, there are poster boards in the back. We do have a
couple here so maybe later (after the meeting) you can come take a look at 'em. There are two basic
models. The ... all of' em, both models are three bedroom, two baths, with two-car garages. The living
spaces would range between 1,100-1,200 square feet and ... uh ... we've looked at structuring the
affordable sales program to target various income categories. In other words, 5 percent of the 238 units
would be set aside for those families earning 70 percent of the County median income. Now the County
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median income for 2005 is about $62,000. So if you are earning 70 percent of that amount, that
basically places your family income in the mid-forties (say $43-44,000) and that would allow you to
qualify for these homes on ... uh ... for, on a five ... uh ... 5 percent of the homes will be allocated to
the lowest income category. And then we have another 95 or 40 percent of the 238 homes set aside for
those families earning 80 percent of the median family income, which I believe is about $50,000. We
have another 45 or another 40 percent of the homes being set aside for those families earning 90 percent
of the County median income. And finally, we have 15 percent of the 238 homes set aside for those
families earning 100 percent of the median family income for the County. Therefore, that's roughly
36 units to be sold to those families earning up to $62,000 a year. Now although the ... uh ... there is a
range in sales prices that we have allocated under the program. Hale Mua Properties intent is to keep the
prices as low as possible to all income categories and that's really the objective here. So although we do
have a varying rate structure in terms of how many homes can be sold to what income categories, really
the intent is to get it delivered at the lowest possible price to all income categories.
As the Chair mentioned, we do have certain exemptions that we are requesting from the Council and I
think Chair had mentioned community plan amendment, change in zoning, project district exemptions,
which really are key exemptions because it does allow the project to proceed in a more timely fashion.
There are other exemptions that we'll be seeking as welL These relate to fee exemptions for
construction permits and so forth but really the really important ... uh ... exemption that helps in the
delivery of affordable homes are those exemptions relating to land use approvals. And just to give the
Committee and members of the public an idea of the schedule that we're talking about, as the Chair had
mentioned, the State law provides that once the Council receives the Section 201G application, there is a
45-day time period within which some action needs to be taken--either approval or denial. But once that
action is concluded with the Committee and the Council, then the next step is to return back to the State
Land Use Commission. The partial is within the State Agricultural district, so we would need to get the
State Land Use Commission to reclassify these lands from Agriculture to Urban and we hope to get
through that process assuming all other elements move in synchronization in the last quarter of this year.
And upon having that process concluded together with the 20lG then that really allows Hale Mua
Properties to proceed with its construction while finalizing the designs and getting into construction. So
we are looking at, hopefully, getting into the ground in '06 or sooner if possible. There is a time frame
(probably 15 months or so) to get the subdivisions in, subdivision improvements in; and that is, the
roadways, infrastructure, and so forth. Then at that point, we are probably looking at 2007 to start
construction of the homes with delivery to follow a few months later. So from a final delivery target
date standpoint probably looking latter part of 2007-2008 when these homes can be delivered. Again,
this has been a fairly rigorous process that we've been in and this 201G process or 201G application that
we've submitted to the Council represents one step of the ... uh ... of the process. We do have
additional work to do in terms of getting through the State Land Use Commission and of course getting
then to construction. So Mr. Chair, that concludes our overview and of course we do have our resources
here available (Mr. Kim and his staff) to answer any questions that Committee members may have.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Before we get into the Committee asking questions, I would like to
offer the opportunity for the departments to also provide comment on the project as you have just
reviewed. I would like to start with the Department of Housing and Human Concerns and ask the
Director (Ms. Lee) for her comments.
MS. LEE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Committee members. Good evening, everyone. The only thing I would
like to add to the presentation tonight is perhaps some of you might be wondering what prices we are
talking about when we talk about 70, 80, 90 percent of median income, you don't really know what the
sales price might be. So just for your information, if interest rates stay the same, at 6 percent, we are
looking at for the 70 percent category (the first, the lowest category), the house would sell for $173,900
house and lot (173,9); the next category up, $204,000 house and lot; next, $228,800; and the last
category (the highest category) $258,900. As you can see, these prices cannot be compared to today's
market because there are no homes today selling at those prices. This is one of the reasons why our
Department (our Administration) strongly supports this project and we hope that you do too. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Lee. Before continuing, the Chair would like to also recognize with us this
evening, the Director of the Department of Water Supply and that's Mr. George Tengan. Also, the
Deputy Director for the Housing and Human Concerns Department, the ... I'm sorry, Deputy Director
Herman Andaya is also here with us this evening as well as our Corporation Counsel Edward Kushi, Jr.
At this time, I would like to call on Mayor Arakawa to also provide us your brief comments on the
project.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Good evening, Council members and those of you in the audience. I would like to give
a little bit of a brief background on how we got to this point because I think it's very important for all of
you to understand what we are trying to accomplish and how we got to this point where we're actually
before the Council on the 201G process.
When our Administration came into office, one of the major problems we had in this community was to
create affordable housing. Virtually, everyone was asking us to be able to work on an affordable
housing project and we took that very seriously. We didn't have hundreds of millions of dollars to be
able to buy property and build houses. We didn't have land. So what we had to do is ask the developers
if they would partner with us to try and create affordable housing. Now affordable housing in a market
that's going crazy in real estate is something that most of the developers didn't want to touch. It was
"why work with affordable, when we can get market housing and we can create all this profit margin?"
Sterling was one of the few developers at the early-on that came to us and asked us if he could help.
Originally, when we started this project, Sterling asked if he could do 100 percent of the project as
affordable. He was looking at the whole project as affordable. Okay. When we were doing our analysis
for this area, we know that the traffic in this area is gonna become a real problem because of all the other
projects that are occurring in this area. You have Wailuku Estates. You have Betsill's project. You have
all the Waiehu Kou projects. You've got Waiehu Heights. All those projects in this area is creating a
real big problem for traffic. In this community in the community plan, there is a road that's proposed to
alleviate the traffic. This is Waiale Drive. This goes under the bridge, behind St. Anthony, through the
millyard, across lao Stream, it's the old plantation road. Basically, we needed to be able to work on this
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road to be able to alleviate traffic in this area because otherwise, with all these projects coming up--that
you may not feel at all now because a lot of 'em are still being built--ultimately, you're gonna have a
real problem with traffic in this area. So we asked ... when we looked at the project, we also knew that
there's gonna be a lot of problems with the wastewater system and the roadway that needed
improvement, so we asked Sterling if he would back off on doing 100 percent affordable and to help us
by creating the bridge over lao Stream, the Roadway, and some of the sewer improvements that were
needed in this area. He agreed to do that but in order to finance that, we also had to be able to back-off
and allow some of the property to be sold at market value and not affordable. At the time and still policy
that we've been talking about in creating affordable housing is the ability to create mixed communities.
We didn't want communities that were all affordable because we didn't want the stigmatism of, you
know, this being the cheap housing project. We wanted to have mixed communities. So we also asked
Sterling when we were working with this to build in the mixed-community component for this area and
he was willing to work in that, with that project and to do that. So of all the projects, of all the
developers that we have been working with, Sterling is the only developer to this point that has been
willing to deal with the low end of the affordable spectrum that we are trying to work with. This is ...
we'll have a lot of other projects that will come through for discussion but this is the only one where the
affordable housing component is gonna be able to address the lower end. We needed a project that
would address the lower end of the affordable scale. There will be many others that will come in at 120,
140. There are going through the process, many like this, but Sterling's is the only one that is looking at
100 and below. Most of his projects, he's looking at 80 percent of median. And we needed to address
this area within our community, which is why working with him, going through all the humbug that it
takes to be able to get a bridge approved, getting the Core of Engineers to approve the span going across
lao Stream, working with all the different departments, we're able to get to this point. Now, there are
gonna be questions as to the material or the type of housing. We asked him to try to keep the price low.
So if you look at what's on the market right now, you are going to find that building costs have been
escalating tremendously because of the supply and demand and the construction costs. All the materials
have been going up. So we asked Sterling to look at what he could possibly find to be able to work ...
at different materials to try and be able to keep the price low and that's one of the things that he has
accomplished. Now overall, when we looked at affordable housing and the creation of affordable
housing, there is no question ... and should be no question in anybody's mind, it's a question of
tradeoffs. If we are going to create affordable housing, houses have to go someplace. And we don't
have properties in the Kahului/Waluku area that are inexpensive. We have to be able to balance off the
cost of the properties and the developer's ability to be able to secure that property to where the best
infrastructure is. And this area is one of the better areas because you already have so many projects that
are already going up around this area, the infrastructure is gonna be affected and needs to be developed
out completely. Without the bridge over lao, without the road improvements, without the sewer
expansions, this community is gonna have a lot of problems in the future. Where we are working on
combining this with other projects, like the Hawaiian Homes project, will allow multiple developments
to be able--working together--to be able to get a lot of the infrastructure needs that you need to get. It
won't happen independent, project by project, because as you can see--and as Sterling pointed out ... or
Mike pointed out--the region of lao Stream doesn't come close to touching this project, but it was very
necessary for us to be able to improve the traffic in this area. Again, whenever we are looking at
projects like this, there are going to be tradeoffs. The areas that we put up the housing is no longer
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gonna be open space. It's no longer gonna be the old cane field that it used to be but let's face it, in this
area, the entire area is being developed out one way or the other. Waiehu Kou projects are already
approved and being built. Wailuku Estates is already being built. All of these subdivisions in the
Waihee area are being built. This is almost .. .(end of tape, start lB) . .. you know. It's sort of an
afterthought that this one is coming in at this location so late in the game but there is that tradeoff--the
open spaces, the view planes, some of those will be affected. But again, I will stress that if you look at
all the other projects that are already approved that are already coming up, this area is not going to be
the way it was ten years ago, and creating the infrastructure that we need for this area is of vital
importance, the way we think and we're planning. Okay. We didn't do this by accident. It wasn't just a
mistake, it happenstance that we were asking for the bridge. We're asking for road improvements, sewer
improvements, and because of that (the cost to do that), Sterling is absorbing a lot of those costs within
the project. So he could have just done the affordable housing, not come with the offsite improvements
and he would have been okay in his project but it would not have served the purpose that we needed to
be able to serve in this community. So, please take that into consideration. In my opinion, Sterling has
been one of the outstanding partners that we've had because he's worked and bent over backwards to
alleviate a lot of the situations that were becoming concerns in this community that nobody else is going
to address. If that bridge does not come up over lao Stream, traffic in this area is going to get a lot
worse and there is no other real alternative through the old Wailuku Town. You can't put three lanes or
two lanes of good traffic flow through Wailuku Town any other place. So just in comments on that,
because I know that there have been comments about, well it's gonna change the character of the
community. Absolutely. Kahului, Wailuku, Lahaina, Kihei, all of the areas that we used to consider
quaint have changed and are changing. Kihei is no longer the Kiawe trees and open space that it used to
be when I was a child. Wailuku is changing. When you look from the County building, you can already
see all of the nature projects that are coming up in this area, especially Wailuku Estates. So the character
of the area is definitely changing and how we alleviate all of the problems and concerns in this area, by
trying to work the projects jointly, as an Administration, this is what concerns us and this is how we
have to work with it. So this is our best shot. Sterling has gone through and worked with all of the
departments. To this point, we've worked to try and get through all of the concerns one at a time. Our
departments will point out what some of these concerns are because they are very real concerns that we
have to be able to work with. Ultimately, at the end of the day, our recommendation is approval of this
project because when you look at the give-and-takes, the gives for the community are much more than
the takes; and how we're gonna be able to look at this project and look at this community as it develops
out, without the improvements, this community is gonna be in a pretty bad fix ... because the other
projects that are coming up did not put in and were not required to put in the infrastructure that was
necessary to make this community work. So thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman Mateo.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. We would like to continue on and ... uh . . . ask the Planning
Department (Director Foley) for your comments.
MR. FOLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, and residents. We had an opportunity to
comment on the project when it went before the State Land Use Commission for the environmental
document and we've also submitted a letter to the housing director. We strongly support affordable
housing and we--as the Mayor mentioned--we raised a number of issues related to the project. I will just
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go through those without really discussing them, but just to identify which issues we raised. The first
was conversion of prime Agricultural land, which was intended to serve as a separation between
Wailuku and Waihee. The second was that the large lots, the lots that are 2-25 acres should stay in the
State Agricultural designation and not be changed to urban. Those lots should only use non-potable
water for the Agriculture. Another is that the fee exemption should apply to the affordable lots only, not
to the market lots or the large Ag lots. Another was that there are 228 ohana units possible in the
project, which would increase the number of total units to 694 units. We also raised the question about
the timing of construction for the mitigation of traffic--excuse me--and the mitigation of sewer
treatment. We also have met with Sterling and the Department of Education regarding the fact that this
school that we are enjoying this evening is already beyond capacity. So those were the issues that we
addressed in the environmental document and also in our report to the Council. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Director Foley. The next department is the Public Works and Environmental
Management Deputy Director Michael Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Wow. It seems like the Mayor and the Planning Department has
pretty much covered everything that Wastewater ... uh . .. Public Works and Environmental
Management has covered, so I have no additional comments at this time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. The Department of Parks Deputy Director John Buck.
MR. BUCK: Good evening, Mr. Chair and Committee members. We are supporting the project. Out of the
project, we will be getting approximately a little over 5-acre park (active park) for our ball fields and
there is some, which would be maintained by the County. It also would include a restroom and parking
and then there's a couple pocket parks but that will be taken care of by the association.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Buck. If we can get comments from the Acting Assistant Police Chief
Glenn Miyahira. Okay, Glenn's ... uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: He's here.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. MIYAHARA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Committee members, and community members. Police Department,
our major concern is the traffic ... urn ... not withstanding the mitigation measures that the developer
has proposed. The improvement to Imi Kala would certainly help but we still would see the focus of
traffic congestion being on Mill Street, Waiehu Beach Road, and Market. We're not engineers but
... urn ... that would be our biggest concern as far as the project goes, is ... would be the traffic. The
increase in the use of police services is another concern but it's something that we deal with anyway. If
the project goes through, we'll do the best we can as far as the provision of public safety services on the
Police Department side. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. And the final department is the Department of Water Supply,
Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you know, water is very tight in Central Maui and Up country and
West Maui and Molokai. This project is no different. We're running tight with water. However, we're
doing a lot of water development projects. We've recently improved the water treatment plant at the lao
tank site. We added another filter whereby we could accommodate about 700,000 gallons in demand.
We plan to install a fourth unit fairly soon. That's gonna give us another 700,000 gallons. We're
planning to put the Hamakuapoko wells online. That should provide anywhere from 500,000 to a
million gallons per day depending on when we do the connections. But that should be done maybe
within the next year or two in my estimation. So we're doing our best to meet the needs of the projects
that are approved by the Council and the Planning Department and the Planning Commission ... uh ...
the estimation of the Water Department, so we're trying to do that. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Tengan. That's the extent of the departments at this particular
point. The ... we're ready for public testimony. Just to set some of the ground rules, each of the
testifiers will be allowed three minutes to testify and an additional minute to conclude and it's important
at this time that if you have any cell phones or pagers if you would please tum them off at this particular
point. With that being said, the first individual to testify is William P. Taylor. When you come to the
mike, if you represent a group or an organization will you please so state it. Mr. Taylor.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, my name is Bill Taylor. I'm 63 years old, born on Oahu.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Taylor, will you please address the Committee members, please.
MR. TAYLOR: Council and the Mayor and Mr. Kim. Yes, as I said, I'm 63 years old, born in Honolulu. And
I've seen Oahu develop from pristine conditions into what it is today and I can only say that I am very
impressed by the Council and your heads here and the Mayor in bringing forth development in a very
knowledgeable way. I haven't seen this in a long time and I think with your help and your
communications with the developer, this project should get off its feet and be something good for the
community here. I know that there are tax advantages. That's how our schools get our money, through
income, and also ... uh ... jobs and for the community. That's virtually all I wanted to say. I really
don't have any concerns right offhand but I think development in this area would be good for the
community.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Taylor. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Mr. Frank Decarlo, and Mr. Decarlo will be followed by Giovanni Rosati.
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MR. DECARLO: Good evening, Council. I think this project is very good. I'm from Sacramento California.
I'm 24 and I've lived in Maui for almost three years now. During those three years, I've seen all the
housing go up like 50 percent. A medium house being 500,000 and most people not being able to afford
that but ... uh ... I would say most people have a middle income. I think that if it continues and we
don't have affordable housing that eventually people that do want to live on Maui won't be able to. This
would really help everybody by bringing a lot of stress off of people's lives and make an easier life for
everybody. That's all I have.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Mr. Giovanni Rosati. And because we're
... this session is being taped by Akaku, so if you can please stand at the microphone. We have a
camera in the front that's kind of directed right at that station. Thank you.
MR. ROSATI: All right; thank you. Good evening, Chair Mateo, members of the Committee, and members of
the Council. My name is Giovanni Rosati. I'm the Coordinator for the Maui Nui Housing Task Force
and tonight I'm testifying in support of this project. It's our understanding that the project has 466 lots
and that 238 of those are affordable to families with incomes that are between 70 and 100 percent of
median income. As you know, increasing the supply of housing for Maui's working families is the
mission of our task force. We support the project because it proposes more than half of the units for
families at 70-100 percent of median income. This group is definitely underserved in our current
homeownership market. We hope that when the project is built, it will be built quickly. We believe that
it is essential that the affordable homes come online at the same time as the market units. When Maui's
working families are adequately sheltered in suitable dwelling units, Maui's quality of life will improve
greatly. We urge your approval of this housing project. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very much. Foster Ampong followed
by Elden Liu. . .. (end of tape, start 2A). ..
MR. AMPONG: Good evening. My name is Foster Ampong and I'm here to speak with the living beings that
are seated at the table and not the corporation or any such capacity. I am opposed adamantly against this
project, and I would like to explain. Water is a very major issue as Mr. Tengan had just articulated.
With each new development that's being proposed or being put into the County mechanism for
development, where is all the water going to come from that's gonna supply and service these new
communities? I know Hale Mua can't get their water from Waiehu because that water's going to Wailea,
to service that community there. Just to give you an idea, Hawaiian Homes at Paukukalo--I
understand--gets the recycled water. Okay. I may be mistaken. Okay. But my point here is this. With
this development and any other development that is being proposed or looked at, you're going to have
higher property taxes that the current residents are going to have to pay. You're going to have a higher
cost of living. That's not going to abate, you know, and these are issues that need to be addressed now.
In your position, here on the Committee and on the Council, you can make the difference. It's not a lack
of creativity or a lack of laws, it's just the lack of will. You know, we ... I say we, the people of Maui
(everybody) Hawaiians and non-Hawaiians, who have lived here for generations, who have gone
through the eras of the plantation. Now, I'm looking at all these lands that once had sugar and pineapple
and they are being bought up and gobbled up by all these outside speculators; developed; and then these
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people come in and make their money, and then they leave. Who's left with the stress and the challenges
of the infrastructure, or lack of infrastructure? Who's left with the higher cost of living? Who's left
with the higher property taxes? I know for a fact that I see people in Waiehu, who pay higher property
taxes than these individuals who bought up thousands of acres and they pay less. I understand, you
know, there's this difference between Agricultural land zone and Residential; but regardless, that's
lopsided. That's not right. I am appealing to each and everyone of you and your conscience, do the
right thing. You have the will; you just need to exercise it. I am not anti-development; I'm just
anti-stupid. I don't want our island to become another Los Angeles or another Honolulu. All of you can
make a difference, not only you on the Committee or government officials in the government, but every
single body, everyone here in this community. All we need to do is stand up. The other most important
issue that seems to be ignored and I call it the pink elephant in the living room is title to the land. There
is so much cloud in the titles of this Hale Mua project, and nobody can tell me or convince me
otherwise. These are issues that need to be confronted--title, water, high cost of living, taxes, you know,
et cetera, et cetera. So please, listen to your conscience. Put the politics aside. Do the right thing.
Don't be afraid. You've got people in the community that will back you. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Ampong. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing none. Elden
Liu, and Elden will be followed by Joseph Molina.
MR. LIU: Honorable Mayor, Council members, and Aloha kakou, everyone. My name is Elden Liu and I have
some concerns. I am an heir (a lawful heir) of an original patentee from the Mahele and the royal patent
number is 6094 helu 3436 and also royal patent 3217 helu 3451. Listening to the presentation, I really
like what you're offering. It's very nice. We can all tum into our newspapers and see that there's a
tremendous need for housing on this island. I don't dispute that at all. What I am concerned about is
landownership. I have a letter here from the Department of General Services and Accounting, from a
Ms. Susan Shaner, State Archivist and Public Archives of the State of Hawaii, do hereby certify that the
attached document is a true and correct copy of Land Commission Award 8559-B, Apana 20 to William
Lunalilo, on Pages 481 and 482 of Volume 10, of Land Commission Awards [Series 288], Board of
Commissioners to Quiet Land Titles. I think that before this project really gets on a move--and like I
said, I like the presentations, it's very needed--I think we should clarify the issue of this document here.
And if I may read, it's written ... it's in Olelo Hawaiian. It says, Helu 8559 to William Charles
Lunalilo, Apana 21. In the areas, the iIi aina of Ahikuli, Waiehu, and Puali Komohana. I really feel that
this should be addressed first and if we can find answers to the questions of these land ownerships, then
I welcome this project. It's gonna stress an already null or not ... infrastructure that is not in place.
Water is a concern. All these things, I ... I, the traffic problems are great. I know that for a fact. I'm a
longshoreman. Cars come into this island every week. Every week, we bring in hundreds of cars. So
this island is growing at a rapid pace and I think some of the infrastructural needs (housing and the like)
should be addressed. I really would like to see this document be addressed. If some way the Council
could come back with some answers to the ... where the land divisions fall, I would really appreciate
that. If! may, I would like to leave this with Mr. Mateo. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Next person
to testify is Mr. Joseph Molina.
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MR. MOLINA: Good evening, Council members and Mayor. I'm one of the landowners in upper Waiehu
(Malaihi Road) and my concern is '" uh .. , I like the subdivision because I deal directly with
... um ... homeless shelters and affordable homes. We just get one going on at the Hale 0 Wainee,
Mr. Riding. I work for Mr. Riding and we like affordable homes because already we just built three
buildings there and we have ... not enough. So I know for sure, firsthand, that we need affordable
homes. My only ... um ... worry is about the water. In the sugar plantation before, when they told us
that they was going make subdivisions over here, they told us they no was going full around with our
water. Then the next thing they know, all the kuleana water was going down because they taking our
water like how you guys going build wells and everything. So when you guys build wells, you guys
going be sucking' em all from the bottom and us guys on the surface, we not going get nothing. So we
not going get taro patches and everything else. If you guys seen the old thing in Waikiki before, from
the ocean all the way up, if you guys look at ... all, was all taro patches (all 10 'is). Now no more
nothing, only buildings. No more water; everybody screaming for water. That's only my ... uh ... my
da kine, my ... urn ... my thing, and my access to my roads, which I know you guys went show us that
you guys going do that, and I appreciate that. As long as you guys can live, you know, try do something
with our water and everything, I for this project. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, any questions? Thank you. Gayle Long to be followed
by David Hoffman.
MR. LONG: Good evening, Council members, Mr. Mayor. Everything I've heard tonight, I think is great. I
admire the Council and the developer for trying to put this subdivision together. I think the County
desperately needs low-income housing. My biggest concern is I'm a resident of Oceanview Estates,
which is--as you guys know--right adjoining the proposed subdivision. As of about a year and a half
ago, when school year is open between 7:15 and 8:00 a.m. in the morning, there is gridlock on Waiehu
Beach Road. From Kahekili Highway, it takes as long as 20 minutes to get a mile and a half currently to
Kahului Beach Road, and nothing I've seen addresses the additional traffic that's gonna be dumped onto
Waiehu Beach Road. I guess what my concern is this: currently, there are a number of school buses that
go on that road that stop. We've already got thousands of cars coming that way. The developer, when
he made his presentation, almost alluded to the effect that a lot of the traffic will be going to Wailuku. I
don't think that's necessarily correct. There are a lot of people that have to go to Kahului, Kihei,
Maalaea, et cetera. So what's gonna happen as that traffic's dumped into Waiehu Beach Road?
Currently, if it's backed up all the way to Oceanview Estates, then when the newer developments come
online, if we're gonna dump additional traffic on, where are these people gonna go? We have two lanes,
school buses, and it's already backed up a mile and a half. So that's my biggest issue. Other than that, I
think it's a wonderful plan but my main concern as a citizen is that the infrastructure of this community
be addressed because--as our Police Chief (Acting Police Chief) said--it becomes an issue across the
board for traffic accidents and we don't certainly want another pali in Central Maui. As it is now, there's
nowhere for people to go if there is an accident. So I just think that it ought to be a seriously considered
issue and I would highly recommend that the developer and the Council address that because you're
gonna have a lot of upset citizens. There are ... it's already bad now. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Long. Members, any questions? Thank you. Mr. David Hoffinan, and
Mr. Hoffman will be followed by Michael Hillinger.
MR. HOFFMAN: My name is David Hoffman and I live in Waiehu. Mayor, Council people, thank you for
listening. The newly proposed subdivision should be disapproved in my opinion without addressing the
traffic issues beyond the current suggestion. The suggestion of putting a connector to Imi Kala Street is
a step in the right direction but unless it's connected directly to Lower Main Street, not indirectly, this
solution will fail. Traffic will migrate up Mill Street to an immediate left on Mission Street and this will
become an almost impassable situation. Mission Street can't handle becoming a major thoroughfare.
The Imi Kala connector, if used, will also flood the already stressed intersections of Mill Street and
North Market as well as East Vineyard and North Market. These intersections are already reaching
near-failure levels throughout the day and current developments have barely become online. Additional
high-density development in this area will also aggravate the problems of backups on Kahului Beach
Road to the Maui Arts & Cultural Center and Waiehu Beach Road all the way to Kahekili Highway
especially on schooldays. The only alternative exits from the Waiehu, Waihee, Wailuku areas are
through Happy Valley or zigzagging through the Wailuku Industrial area. This is not a solution; it's only
a problem. Without an additional free-flow exit out of Waiehu and Waihee in the Wailuku Industrial
area connecting directly and quickly to Lower Main and onto Waiale Road, this area will become nearly
impassable with traffic heading in either direction (Kahului or towards Maalaea) through Wailuku.
Additionally, the development looks great. It's a beautiful highway but perhaps, the one row of houses
along the highway could be repositioned into one of the other lots so we can maintain a minor concept
of open space along this highway and not make it nothing but a ... instead of a tree tunnel, we'll have a
housing tunnel. We have to stress to you that large developments must be planned for with the
infrastructure first, not afterwards. The Mayor, very articulately, expressed the need and the growth that
is going on but you can't just shrug your shoulders and say "well, it's happening anyway". Traffic is our
major concern. However, both the water and sewage and other issues have to be developed too, have to
be addressed too. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you. Mr. Hillinger,
and to be followed by Tom Cook.
MR. HILLINGER: Good evening, Council members, Mayor, and community residents. I've lived on this
island for 34 years and I've seen the expansion and growth, maybe not as much as some of you have
seen but ... urn ... 20 years ago, I bought my first house for $80,000, and I have five kids that live on
this island. I've been following this project pretty extensively, through the newspapers and through
communication with different Council members, and I am for this project because my oldest son has
already moved off the island. He moved to South Carolina where he bought a ranch and horses for
... urn ... I think it was $180,000 for 50 acres, ranch house, and bam. That's the first one that left so
far. My youngest is 17. My second daughter is going to school in Santa Barbara and I can see her doing
the same thing, not coming back to Hawaii because of the cost of living here. So I just ... I just see
some areas of a concern with water, with housing, and with the traffic in the area, which I do agree on. I
think Sterling Kim is working to try to make the community work for this project. I'm not sure how that
all works out but I see some progress in that area. I just hate to see all our kids leaving for different
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options and like I say, my oldest one is 23 and he moved already. So I see a pattern with all the rest of
'em going in the same direction. Like I said, I bought my house for $80,000 twenty years ago and that
was affordable at that time. I bought it and I'm still there. So I don't know what it's gonna take but we
have to do something to make our kids stay on this island and that's basically all I have to say. Thank
you for your time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
Mr. Glenn Kosaka.

Members, any questions?

Mr. Tom Cook to be followed by

MR. COOK: Good evening, Council members, Mayor, community. Thank you for the opportunity to
... uh ... my name is Tom Cook. I'm here to speak as an individual. I'm a member of the Maui Nui
Task Force and I believe in their mission very strongly. I'm also a member of ... and board member of
Maui Contractors Association, but I'm here as an individual. I've been before you before. I'm pretty
passionate about affordable housing. I'm concerned about all the kids graduating from the schools this
year, last year, last five years, next five years. I'm in support of this project. I think it's an admirable
beginning to public-private partnerships. Sterling guys have chosen a competing product but it's a good
product and ... um ... looking for, I say from something that I built, you know, so ... um ... anyway, I
wish the MacNut farm had been successful. The, you know, people put a lot of money into the cane.
People put a lot of money into Ag for the MacNuts. Agriculture hasn't worked in the area. I feel for the
people in the community. The traffic needs to be addressed; the water. That's you guy's responsibility,
to make sure that you follow up with the infrastructure and that's gonna be a long term solutions to the
problems, and not easy ones. I would just like to say that I hope that the answer to affordable housing
does not focus or buy into the belief that the only way to build affordably is small lots. Local people
deserve more. Rural low-density neighborhoods should be allowed and encouraged. Four half-acre lots,
instead of one two-acre lot in the marginal Agricultural lands Upcountry and in different places of the
community would enable us to put a whole lot more local people on the land; and if it's like ... if you're
gonna clutter up the communities and land with people, it might as well be local people. Okay. As far
as paying for the infrastructure, we are blessed that people are willing to build multimillion dollar estates
in the resort areas and if we encourage and allow them to do that, that will generate the tax revenue that
we can afford to do the infrastructure, that we can afford to take care of Maui's homegrown. So thank
you for the opportunity to give my two-cents. Aloha.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Cook. Members, any questions? Thank you. Mr. Glenn Kosaka to be
followed by Harold Miller.
MR. KOSAKA: Good evening, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is Glenn Kosaka and
I represent the Kula Community Federal Credit Union. We have heard pros and cons this evening and
stating your opinion is, of course, a fundamental right of Americans. It is, however, also part of the
American dream to own your own home. In this regard, the credit union would like to commend those
who are working towards it, particularly, Mr. Kim. The credit union would like to state that it
anticipates providing funding for its own members and to participate actively in other facets of the
affordable housing program. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Kosaka. Members, any questions? Harold Miller and Harold will be
followed by Bob ... well.
MR. MILLER: Okay. It's nice to be here and hear the comments and see the Mayor here and the County
Council people here. I'm in support of the project because we all know the shortage of affordable
housing and our children are leaving the island because they can't afford a house over here. But I see
the issues but I think, you know, you've addressed them and ... uh ... a couple--well actually, I came
here 33 years ago, when there was only one traffic light on the whole island (on Market and Main
Street), so I've seen it grow. I've been a real estate broker ... in real estate for about 30 years, so I've
sold and bought property and it's, you know, it's really ... urn ... homeownership is
stability
of the American dream is to own a home and ... uh ... you people have to allow this developer. He's
bent over backwards to get this project going and ... uh ... the issues may be small but I mean work
'em out so these kids can get a house. And there's only a couple of things I wanted to say about the
curbs and sidewalks, I think are important. I don't know why you're going to eliminate 'em but people
(kids) can't ... they should walk on the sidewalk and not in the streets. Also, there should be trees so
try and get some trees donated or put in by the County to make it more appealing, so trees and sidewalks
that's kind of basic. I bought my first house in 1987 in Hale Piilani and the trees are coming in and it
looks really nice but ... uh ... anyway, I appreciate your time and it's nice seeing the big turnout here.
I would like to see the project come together and that's it. Any questions? I have nothing.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Miller.
MR. MILLER: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, any questions? Thank you. Next testifier is Bob Hanusa to be followed by
M. "Chubby" Vicens.
MR. HANUS A: Good evening, Council and Mayor. I'm a resident on Malaihi Road in one of the few
residential properties that abuts this subdivision. At present, I look out over a number of nut trees. If
this goes through, I'll look out over a bunch of houses. I'm not necessarily against this thing but I truly
believe that we have a real problem with traffic, far more than has been addressed here tonight. It was
mentioned the fact that the extension of Imi Kala would go on through, over to Waiale on the old
cane-haul road. But as you well know how fast things move here in Maui. That won't happen for ten
years. In the meantime, we're gonna have at least 600 cars dumped out in front of ... uh ... the
Wailuku Post Office every morning. I do ... I work with Safe Communities of Hawaii and I do traffic
counts. I made one recently on the downhill going into Happy Valley. It was after school was out.
There was no school present but there were 3,000 cars a day there. When school is out, it goes up
considerably. We need to address the traffic problem before this thing starts. Also, it was mentioned
about schools on the early part of this project, there was a $450,000 assessment for schools. I haven't
heard that mentioned tonight, and what will $450,000 do? We've got 900 kids are gonna be in that lot,
on those lots and where are they gonna go. That hasn't been addressed. Water also, on previous times,
they mentioned a 500,000-gallon tank. I heard nothing about that tonight. Water is a very serious
problem. I have some suggestions on a couple other things. I assume there will be tum lanes on
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Kahekili Highway for those two outlets, and will there be traffic lights? I can't get off of Malaihi Road
at 7 o'clock in the morning now. How are those people gonna get out? I have a couple suggestions for
some of these large lots, and I realize it's a zoning problem but ... uh ... it would be very convenient if
one of those large lots was made into a schoolyard, into a school. There's 15 and 25 acres. Another one
could be made into a senior home, and there should be room for a small commercial area so that all of
these people wouldn't have to go to Wailuku or Kahului to get a bottle of milk and a loaf of bread.
That's about all I have to say tonight. Thank you for your opportunity.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? M. "Chubby" Vicens.
MR. VICENS: Chairman Mateo and members of the Committee. My name is Mercer "Chubby" Vicens and
I'm here speaking as an individual tonight. I think the project under Sterling Kim, as I've investigated at
least, taking a personal note in it, has been one where he's exhausted all of the things that need to be
done. He has agreed to do all of the things that have been asked of him to do and I think I'm here
tonight to appeal to you and the community that the only way that we can move forward is to allow
people an opportunity to take some risks. He's willing to take the risk with 238 affordable homes. Yes,
there are problems. There will be problems. Four years ago when I bought my first home for $20,750,
there were problems. These problems will not go away. I think we have to decide--we, the community,
our politicians, the Mayor, who is here supporting it tonight--whether we are up to the task, and I believe
we are. Maui is an absolutely wonderful place to be. I've been here about 18 years. I've seen us grow.
If we do not continue to grow responsibly then this island will wither. We will not be able to meet the
challenges of the future. On behalf of Mr. Kim, I have to say that he is a gentleman--that I know--of
great integrity, so I'm here to plead with you. If Mr. Kim says he's going to do it, you can bet your last
buck on it because it will be done. And I think, you know, we all have opinions as to whether this is
good, bad, or indifferent; but several of them talked about our kids. Why are they not here? That's
because there on the mainland. They can't afford to be here. I lost family to the mainland 22 years ago.
They're still not back. I have a daughter, who is a single parent, and she is looking for an opportunity to
possibly make her dream come true. And Council members, you and the administration have it in your
hands and in your hearts to be able to make that dream come true for 238 Maui families. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions? Darlene Ane to be followed by Robert Armitage.
MS. ANE: Good evening, Councilmen and Mr. Mayor. My name is Darlene Ane and I am a single parent of
two teenagers. This proj ect, I am supporting. The last few years, I've been living with my parents and
as you can see in the newspapers, the prices of homes are only gonna keep on climbing. I do feel that
Mr. Kim's affordable housing project does afford me the opportunity to possibly own a house of my
own, which would be a dream come true but not only that, a house that I could call ... and my children
could call home for them. I don't want to see my children moving to the mainland. I've lost some
family to the mainland already and the cost of living is getting higher. I do feel that Mr. Kim is a very
conscious and responsible developer and I do believe he will work with the communities concerns and
try in every way to make it all work out. So I want to thank you very much for hearing me tonight and I
am in support of this project. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members? Mr. Robert Armitage, and Mr. Armitage will be followed
by the last individual to sign up this evening, and that is Brenda Amdur.
MR. ARMITAGE: Aloha Councilmen, Mayor. I also am ... by William Charles Lunalilo called kuleana lands
up there in Waiehu with ... uh ... Elden Liu. Okay. And I also worked for a lot of developers here on
Maui. The first big developer was Goodfellow; 18 years, I've been with Goodfellow. I've seen the
bureaucratic party come and move. Okay. First of all, before you dress anybody else, address the
kuleana lands and the rights that the people have. Okay. I'm the ninth generation from King William
Charles Lunalilo. Okay. Address the kuleana lands before you make any decisions about parties that
are coming in and building houses on Malaihi Road. This map here that I have is all wells on top, the
lands that we both hold the deeds to. Okay. We come from five kings and the king that we're look in
ana palea right now, eh, is Kekaulike. Now you say about traffic jams. Naturally, going have traffic
jams when you develop crazy, without the people's rights. You're thinking of just money (m-o-n-e-y).
That's what the whole game is all about. What about the people's rights. Everybody in this room,
Hawaiian and non-Hawaiian. What about their rights? Who's pockets getting full here? Yeah. Think
about people's rights and children that's non-born and is coming up in this world today. You're pushing
everybody back. You're selling property that you cannot sell vested rights. According to the great
Mahele, you cannot sell the property. I don't know how Mr. Kim going sell this property and how he
going get the deeds without going through people like us that have the vested rights. You know, money
talks today. What talks today, besides this paper, is vested rights. How can you say that this is
Agricultural; this is Residential; this is Commercial; when this whole State of Hawaii is Agricultural.
Okay. So we get back to the issue of vested rights and my number here is 2005048152. I would leave
you this paper but Mr. Liu left one already, under William Charles Lunalilo. So Mr. Mayor, with deep
sympathy and everything else, for the people of this whole island of Maui Ne ... Hawaii Ne. Please
take it in your see how you guys can develop without this paper here called vested rights. Because over
there on top that area that you going develop is all kuleana land. On kuleana land, you talking about not
putting the infrastructural permits and all that stuff. Yeah. On kuleana land, you can do that ... but can
you sell the land? Vested rights means you can use the land. It's granted down by the king. That has
blood (koko) pili koko noho'i-MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. ARMITAGE: --to help everybody. But you guys going ... you guys gonna sell this land. How? Under
what rights? We have the rights right here. So look into your guys' hearts, please, because there's
people out here starving for land, homeless people. And you guys only looking for m-o-n-e-y,
keni keni, Hawaiian's say. Shame.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any questions? Brenda Amdur? Brenda ... last name is spelled
A-m-d-u-r, just in case, I might be pronouncing it wrong. Okay. Well she was the last individual to sign
up to testify. At this particular point, ifthere's anybody in the audience, who would like to testify, please
come on up to the stand now; and as soon as you're done with your testimony, if you can please step to
the side table and fill out your paper.
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MS. DENAIE: Thank you, Mr. Chainnan. Actually, I filled one out and I didn't bring it over there, so I'm glad
you called for additional speakers. Thank you very much for coming to Waihee today. My name is
Lucienne deNaie. I'm here representing Maui Tomorrow as its Vice President. As you know, we are
very concerned about affordable housing and it's very gratifying to see that this subject has become very
popular for folks to address when they're proposing projects. We've actually been asked by Mr. Kim to
support his project but ... urn ... we would ask him the same questions we would ask here tonight.
How are the tradeoffs here working? Number one, the tradeoff on the schools. Will all these folks, who
are living here, who we hope are young folks with children or families with young children, will there be
space here at Waihee School? Will they need to go to Lihikai and have their parents drive them? Will
they go to the new school in Maui Lani? And if so, would it be better to build more homes around Maui
Lani so kids are closer to school? There's just some tradeoffs that I think need to be discussed. Also
about the matter of the kuleana lands, I don't know if any of you have looked at the tax map keys for
this area but they are "littered" is the word with LCAs and perhaps all of them have been quiet titled but
perhaps some of these folks are right, that they actually have some land claims here that have not been
addressed because the plantation was big and powerful and you never could really speak back to them. I
mean all of you who grew up here, I think, sort of experienced that. They were a benefactor but they
also had a heavy hand and a heavy heel. Along with that, there's the idea of urban growth boundaries.
Are we just, are we deciding tonight that--like the Mayor said, with all due respect--that this isn't good
Agricultural land anymore, so we might as well just accept that it should all be developed? And so is
Waiehu and Waihee just gonna be a suburban extension of Wailuku? Is that the dream for the future? Is
there any other plan? Is there any other consideration? Do we just have to kind of rush along and say
this is what we've been offered; Mr. Kim's been nice to us; he's been very accommodating? That's
probably all true but is there a bigger plan? And do we need to ask that question? Water, I attended a
presentation--many of you did--the other day from the Water Department's staff. And 31 million gallons
of water are going to be needed in this area in 20 years. We are using about 24-25 right now, but that
didn't count any of the Agricultural lands like this. That's just the lands that already have development
approvals in South and Central Maui. This is ... uh ... it's gonna be kind of a juggling act and if
there's no water available for real, I mean, you know, not just pretend, but for real, by the time that this
is ready to go online, will we just hook 'em up anyway and tell people, you know, to tighten their belts
in Kahului? Is there any provision to use any reclaimed water in this for any of the non-potable uses? Is
that built in as a, you know, good conservation measure? There's a lot of unanswered questions and I
just beg you to ask those questions and get satisfied answers before you say "yes" because of course it is
a good idea to have affordable housing, but we are looking at many, many proposals for affordable
housing.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. DENAIE: So we want to hang in there for the best. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
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MS. GOMES: Hi. I'm a generation now ... my name is Maile. My maiden name is Kahoohanohanohano. I
am speaking because, you know, we have ... I mean well our grandparents, our tutus left us land from
the mountain, to the ocean, to the middle, left and right. Okay. And now, as of 2002, I gotta fight David
Singer (from mountain), Robin Williams (ocean), Sterling Kim (that side), and Betsill Brothers. Okay.
This is me. I am 44 years old. I have seven kids and seven grandkids. We own ... we have the deeds
to all the land. Why should we be fighting for what is ours? Okay. You guys should just leave it alone;
leave it as is. Money talks; bullshit walks. But you know what, eh, I have deeds that we own mountain,
ocean, (Apana 1, Apana 2, Apana 3, left and right). Leave it as is so that my grandkids, my great
grandkids, and my children can stay home on the land that was given from my tutus (my great great
tutus) because we don't know actually who our tutus was until now when all of a sudden the people buy
our aina. Then we see all the grading and all the surveying. I think that's wrong. Leave us alone. Why
should we have to lose what's rightfully ours? Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Maile. Maile, if you can come up and fill out the form for us, please?
MS. GOMES: Okay.
MR. KAMAl: Aloha, Council members, Chairman Mateo. My name is Bill Kamai. I am a member of the
Maui Affordable Housing Task Force. I'm also a business representative for the Hawaii Carpenter's
Union here on Maui. From this project's inception, the developer took the time to meet with the Council
members for your ideas and comments to make this a reality. He met with the different department
heads. He met with the Mayor's office; went over their comments and ideas to put this thing together.
In terms of addressing affordable housing here on Maui and throughout the State for that matter, that's
238 homes that we look forward to supplying the skilled labor and workforce to build, using people
from Maui to build homes for the people of Maui. That's 238 homes that we don't have right now and
with the prices of homes skyrocketing all over the state, the longer we wait on this, the higher the prices
will go. With regards to traffic, the development anywhere north of Malaihi Road--that's the road to
upper Waiehu--there's large landowners who've developed land (Waiehu Kou I, II, III, and soon to be
Phase IV) across the street from those developments. Nobody has stepped forward to address the traffic
issue. It took this project (Hale Mua) to address the traffic issue with all of this development that's been
going on thus far. With regards to schools, talk with the developer. He can set aside acreage for
addressing the problem with schools. In terms of land entitlement, bring your paperwork forward. It's
not to be decided here tonight. Let the courts decide. If you feel you have the right, by all means, I
know the developer will sit down with you and go over your paperwork with you. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Once again, we offer the opportunity for
anyone who wishes to still testify. You are welcome to please come on down and do so at this time.
MS. VOGE: Hi, my name is Denise Voge.
CHAIR MATEO: ... (inaudible) ...
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MS. VOGE: Okay. Sorry. My name is Denise Voge. Off the bat, I'm for it because my family and I would
like to own a home again, here. I have a daughter and a granddaughter. My daughter is disabled and my
mother is disabled and so I care for both of them. This would allow us an opportunity to keep them
under the roof with us as we would like to do. I know that others have concerns and there are certainly
many points that I am not privy to. There's a lot of information that a lot of us probably don't know and
don't know the right questions to ask, so we are trusting you guys and you guys to get it right, and we
hope you do. I feel for those that are opposed that possibly ... uh ... a line of discussion to help them
understand or come to some conclusion as their questions. Traffic, yeah, traffic ... (chuckled) ... it's
everywhere. We all have to deal with it. I'm hoping that the plan that's drawn will help that and that
there's gonna be enough space in school for the kids, this school, which is the one my granddaughter
attends. The title searches, as the others brought up, I hope that that can be done to satisfy their
questions. Water, we can dig more wells. That could address some of the water issues. Taxes, the
County can put some caps on that. So there's a lot ofthings that can further be discussed but I hope this
goes through and I hope that it goes through in a positive way so as to not hurt a lot of people's feelings
but to help our children stay on Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. This is the last call.
MS. HOOPII: I am Maggie Hoopii and I'm a resident of Waiehu, upper Waiehu. We've seen developments
starting to take place in our area. We've had problems--water problems, other problems, people coming
in and doing different things to the residents there. We've had to organize ourselves up in this small
area to be sure that we are safe. Now comes along another problem. The problem of our land title.
Okay. Who am I? I sit on the top of Malaihi Road. Will there be a developer someday, who comes and
tells me, "this land does not belong to you; it belongs to somebody else". I differ with that opinion. I
think it's Mr. Kim's duty (as a developer) to be sure that what belongs to the people that have their
ownership, to see that the land stays with the owner. You want to build affordable housing? Fine. But
not take the land that belongs to the people. The people who live here, who were brought up here,
whose parents worked hard to pass the land on to us, to malama the aina. No one buys land in Hawaii.
You only malama the land. This is a major issue in our area. We have seen things happening and I
know for a fact that we have somebody on the Council, who has already stretched out an arm for me ...
and for that I am grateful. But I assure you my children and my grandchildren will inherit what I have.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? That was the last testifier for the evening.
Members, ifthere is no objections, we will close public testimony at this time.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. That concludes it for this evening.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
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CHAIR MATEO: Members, are there any announcements? Hearing none, the Chair would like to advise the
members and the community that the Housing and Human Services Committee will be reconvening this
meeting on Wednesday, July 27,2005, in the Council chambers at 9:00 a.m. With that being said,
members, this meeting of the Housing and Human Services Committee stands in recess.
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